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(2024
( ) )
441,609,694.31 18.66
337,923,514.16 14.28
243,551,031.33 10.29
153,473,417.19 6.48
113,971,756.89 4.82
84,797,334.75 3.58
83,662,208.55 3.53
65,248,802.47 2.76
64,409,808.61 2.72
59,007,393.98 2.49
54,711,460.40 2.31
54,405,636.00 2.30
49,853,620.95 2.11
560,490,989.77 23.68
-171,952.64 -0.01
T
)
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(2024 )
( ) ( )
)

ACOSS (AGENCE CENTRAL)

1 5.34YLD CP O7MAY24 2024 115,000,000 .00 | 114,795,701.93 | 1.00 | 114,897,850.97 | 4.85
ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK OPCT

2 CP 21NAY24 2024 21 50,000,000 .99 | 49,341,293.75| 1.00 | 49,853,620.95| 2.11

3 | NRW BANK 5.35YLD CP 06JUN24 2024 50,000,000 .99 | 49,324,987.55| 0.99 | 49,735,864.59 | 2.10
NEDERLANDSE WATERSCHAPSBANK

4 5.35YLD CP 05JUL24 2024 50,000,000 .99 | 49,332,841.85| 0.99 | 49,523,458.51 | 2.09
CITY OF GOTHENBURG 5.37YLD

5 CP 07JUN24 2024 45,500,000 .99 | 44,915,539.03 | 0.99 | 45,251,783.43 | 1.91
LANDESKREDITBK BADEN -

6 | WUERTT FOERDERBANK 5.34YLD 2024 40,000,000 .99 | 39,461,482.32 | 1.00 | 39,994,146.27 | 1.69
CP 02MAY24
EUROPEAN INESTMENT BANK

7 5.32YLD CP 10JUN24 2024 10 40,000,000 .98 | 39,388,816.88 | 0.99 | 39,767,168.23 | 1.68
LANDESKREDITBK BADEN -

8 | WUERTT FOERDERBANK 5.34YLD 2024 13 40,000,000 .99 | 39,461,482.32 | 0.99 | 39,748,301.37 | 1.68
CP 13JUN24

9 | SNCF SA 5.38YLD CP 14JUN24 2024 14 40,000,000 .99 | 39,457,702.12 | 0.99 | 39,740,640.04 | 1.68

10| SNCF SA 5.34YLD CP 28JUN24 2024 28 40,000,000 .99 | 39,461,979.76 | 0.99 | 39,660,813.46 | 1.68
ERSTE ABWICKLUNGSANST

11 5.35YLD CP 16JUL24 2024 16 40,000,000 .98 | 39,281,958.52 | 0.99 | 39,556,332.30 | 1.67
NEW ZEALAND GOVERNMENT

12 5.35YLD CP 12JUL24 2024 12 35,000,000 .99 | 34,532,989.30 | 0.99 | 34,630,497.11 | 1.46

13 BANK OF ENGLAND 5.38YLD CP 2024 19 35,000,000 .99 | 34,530,405.67 | 0.99 | 34,592,330.23 | 1.46
19JUL24
LANDESKREDITBK BADEN -

14 | WUERTT FOERDERBANK 5.35YLD 2024 24 35,000,000 .99 | 34,532,989.30 | 0.99 | 34,568,913.23 | 1.46
CP 24JUL24
LANDWIRTSCHAFT RENTENBANK

15 5.35YLD CP 31JUL24 2024 31 35,000,000 .99 | 34,527,926.51 | 0.99 | 34,533,057.74 | 1.46

16 COUNCIL OF EUROPE 5.31¥LD CP 2024 12 35,000,000 .97 | 34,075,199.10 | 0.98 | 34,326,503.60 | 1.45
12SEP24
ERSTE ABWICKLUNGSANST

17 5.33YLD CP 02MAY24 2024 30,000,000 .99 | 29,605,141.44 | 1.00 | 29,995,612.92 | 1.27
MUNICIPALTY FINANCE PLC

18 5.33YLD CP O7MAY24 2024 30,000,000 .99 | 29,605,506.63 | 1.00 | 29,973,700.47 | 1.27
EUROPEAN INESTMENT BANK

19 5.33YLD CP O7MAY24 2024 30,000,000 .99 | 29,644,488.48 | 1.00 | 29,973,665.73 | 1.27
NEDERLANDSE WATERSCHAPSBANK

20 5.36YLD CP 0OMAY24 2024 30,000,000 .99 | 29,603,315.58 | 1.00 | 29,964,738.78 | 1.27
ERSTE ABWICKLUNGSANST

21 5.34YLD CP 15MAY24 2024 15 30,000,000 .99 | 29,604,411.06 | 1.00 | 29,938,463.74 | 1.26

22| IDA 5.34YLD CP 16MAY24 2024 16 30,000,000 .99 | 29,604,776.25 | 1.00 | 29,934,129.75| 1.26
EXPORT FINANCE AND INSURANCE

23 CORP 5.52YLD CP 20MAY24 2024 20 30,000,000 .98 | 29,261,611.77 | 1.00 | 29,914,801.55 | 1.26

24| IDA 5.34YLD CP 22MAY24 2024 22 30,000,000 .99 | 29,604,776.25| 1.00 | 29,907,781.47 | 1.26

25| IDA 5.35YLD CP 28MAY24 2024 28 30,000,000 .99 | 29,599,705.11 | 1.00 | 29,881,230.87 | 1.26

26| SNCF SA 5.36YLD CP 28MAY24 2024 28 30,000,000 .99 | 29,594,619.48 | 1.00 | 29,881,029.63 | 1.26
MUNICIPALTY FINANCE PLC

27 5.37YLD CP 31NAY24 2024 31 30,000,000 .99 | 29,598,228.72 | 1.00 | 29,867,547.99 | 1.26
EXPORT DEVELOPMENT CANADA

28 5.50YLD CP 17JUN24 2024 17 30,000,000 .97 | 29,175,390.03 | 0.99 | 29,790,504.33 | 1.26
NEW ZEALAND GOVERNMENT

29 5.37YLD CP 20JUN24 2024 20 30,000,000 .99 | 29,589,519.39 | 0.99 | 29,779,311.50 | 1.26
LANDWIRTSCHAFT RENTENBANK

30 5.34YLD CP 21JUN24 2024 21 30,000,000 .99 | 29,596,037.10 | 0.99 | 29,776,064.00 | 1.26
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(©))
2024
us
18 2,581,707 405,070 0.01 2
(2014 12 31 ) 581, . '
19
Q0ls 12 31 ) 1,741,744 273,280 0.01 2
20
08 2 3y 1,588,200 249,189 0.01 2
21
205 12 31 ) 1,811,602 284,240 0.01 2
22
0 2 3y 1,667,742 261,669 0.01 2
23
2008 12 31 ) 2,188,850 343,431 0.01 2
24
2000 12 31 ) 2,852,799 447,604 0.01 2
25
0 12 31 ) 2,468,582 387,321 0.01 2
26
0m 12 31 Y 2,046,971 321,170 0.01 2
27
008 12 31 ) 2,396,910 376,075 0.01 2
2023 2,119,491 332,548 0.01 2
2,222,408 348,696 0.01 2
2.314,388 363,127 0.01 2
2,264,615 355,318 0.01 2
2,246,816 352,525 0.01 2
10 2.209,847 346,725 0.01 2
11 2,298,669 360,661 0.01 2
12 2,396,910 376,075 0.01 2
2024 2.402,902 377,015 0.01 2
2,413,276 378,643 0.01 2
2,395,990 375,931 0.01 2
2,366,945 371,374 0.01 2

HAEEES & U7 BN TSEREHED OEIS

1 1 B~ 202444 [EREAI)
(L — (20014%5A 1 B~ 2024F43FE) %L D&
6.0% — 7ERTIFRARMED (K1) 13,000
5.0% : | 2500
P RPN IIL BT PP 4 2,000
11 | IS 11,500
20% - 1.000

1.0% A_J_,,+qfqrﬁ\1k_‘ 1500
00% : - : 0
00958  000SEGR  20098SR  20IGESA 0SSR 22148R
)
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(10,000 )
us
( )
18 0.10205
19 0.17285
20 0.58090
21 0.83928
22 1.40265
23 1.59791
24 0.52801
25 0.07807
26 1.22601
27 4.37009
( )
( )
2024
(10,000 )
(10,000 )
us
( )
2023 31 0.38868
2023 30 0.36376
2023 31 0.38366
2023 31 0.39347
2023 29 0.37465
2023 10 31 0.41702
2023 11 30 0.39234
2023 12 29 0.37851
2024 31 0.42937
2024 29 0.37403
2024 28 0.35963
2024 30 0.38451
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us

)
2023 31 4.29901
2023 30 4.42572
2023 31 4.51726
2023 31 4.63277
2023 29 4.71539
2023 10 31 4.75662
2023 11 30 4.77345
2023 12 29 4.76399
2024 31 4.74907
2024 29 4.70759
2024 28 4.68801
2024 30 4.67818
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10,000
¢ O
US
18 0.10205
19 0.17285
20 0.58090
21 0.83928
22 1.40265
23 1.59791
24 0.52801
25 0.07807
26 1.22601
27 4.37009
(10,000 )
( ) 100x (a-b) b
( )
( )
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)
us
18 314,832,304,917 353,938,430, 801 258,170,704,633
(314,832,304,917) (353,938,430,801) (258,170,704,633)
19 318,103,998, 495 402,100,286,776 174,174,416,352
(318,103,998,495) (402,100,286, 776) (174,174,416,352)
20 132,979,002, 930 148,333,387,572 158,820,031,710
(132,979,002, 930) (148,333,387,572) (158,820,031,710)
21 175,376,572,597 153,036,389,603 181,160,214,704
(175,376,572,597) (153,036,389,603) (181,160,214,704)
20 170,010,772,511 184,396,781,348 166,774,205,867
(170,010,772,511) (184,396,781,348) (166,774,205,867)
” 208,704,137,353 156,593, 358,524 218,884,984,696
(208,704,137,353) (156,593,358,524) (218,884,984,696)
o4 315,991,326,167 249,596,378, 887 285,279,931,976
(315,991,326,167) (249,596,378, 887) (285,279,931,976)
25 286,706,037,920 325,127,803,782 246,858,166,114
(286,706,037,920) (325,127,803,782) (246,858,166,114)
26 238,775,648, 860 280,936,726,431 204,697,088, 543
(238,775,648,860) (280,936,726,431) (204,697,088,543)
”7 269,024,480,057 234,030,621,840 239,690,946, 760
(269,024,480,057) (234,030, 621,840) (239,690,946, 760)
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23 103 1 3

2024 4 30 UFRJ
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@
US
2023 12 31
2023 2022
( ) C ) ( ) «c )
5 639,509,915 100,339,106 388,326,664 60,928,454
6 9,758,294 1,531,076 2,133,877 334,805
2,3,4 1,780,088,007 279,295,808 1,663,650,815 261,026,813
2,429,356,216 381,165,990 2,054,111,356 322,290,072
7 32,446,604 5,090,872 7,140,323 1,120,317
32,446,604 5,090,872 7,140,323 1,120,317
2,396,909,612 376,075,118 2,046,971,033 321,169,755

2024

26
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@
us
2023 12 31
2023 2022

( ) « ) ( ) C )
2 112,198,063 17,603,876 35,590,279 5,584,115
— — 4,784 751
112,198,063 17,603,876 35,595,063 5,584,865
9 2,442,678 383,256 1,371,946 215,258
9 711,829 111,686 415,850 65,247
9 766,550 120,272 447,806 70,261
9 383,292 60,139 223,810 35,116
9 10,936,657 1,715,961 6,331,119 993,353
29,958 4,700 24,996 3,922
283,090 44,417 373,190 58,554
15,554,054 2,440,431 9,188,717 1,441,710
2 (96,644,009) (15,163,445) (26,406,346) (4,143,156)
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US
2023 12 31
2023 2022
« ) « ) « ) C )
2,046,971,033 321,169,755  2,468,581,809 387,320,486
2,690, 244,801 422,099,409  2,387,756,489 374,638,993
(2,340,306,222)  (367,194,046) (2,809,367,265)  (440,789,724)
2,396,909, 612 376,075,118  2,046,971,033 321,169,755
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2023 12 31
1996 7 17 2009 1 21
2006 6 23
1990
2015 6 18
2019 1 21
2009 1 21
2020 7 31
2021 3 8
EU  2019/2088 SFDR 7
us
102

FRS102
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FRS102 39

usD

FRS102 22
1 0.01

100 1 1
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FRS102 7.1
1
1
2
3
2023 2022
1,776,370,687 1,661,630,828
3,717,320 2,019,987
1,780,088,007 1,663,650,815
2 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1
2
3

2022 2 24
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2023
1 13 4 6
639,509,915 639,509,915
9,758,294 9,758,294
600,449,567 995,277,203 184,361,237 1,780,088,007
1,239,959,482 995,277,203 184,361,237 9,758,294 2,429,356,216
32,446,604 32,446,604
1,239,959,482 995,277,203 184,361,237 N/A N/A
N/A
2022
1 13 4 6
388,326,664 388,326,664
2,133,877 2,133,877
606,124,714 1,037,813,649 19,712,452 1,663,650,815

994,451,378 1,037,813,649 19,712,452 2,133,877 2,054,111,356

7,140,323 7,140,323
7,140,323 7,140,323

994,451,378 1,037,813,649 19,712,452 N/A N/A
N/A

LIBOR
bps 100 1%

50 100
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50 100
2023
+100bps +50bps -25bps -50bps
us -0.11% -0.06% 0.03% 0.06%
2022
+100bps +50bps -25bps -50bps
us -0.10% -0.05% 0.03% 0.05%
15%
1
30 1 10
10
2023 2022
26.47% 18.94%
2 7 2.90% 5.85%
8 30 18.50% 18.76%
31 90 44.50% 55.49%
91 180 7.63% 0.96%
181 365 0.00% 0.00%
365 0.00% 0.00%
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BBH BBH
A+ 2022 A+
CMS
CMS
CMS
A
1
2023 2022
Aaa 41.80% 45.04%
Aal 11.08% 15.28%*
Aa2 13.39% 17.00%*
Aa3 9.24% 6.06%
Al 24.49% 16.62%
Al A2
P1 P2

*2022
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2023 2022
26.47% 18.94%
72.58% 79.48%
0.95% 0.37%
0.00% 1.21%
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
CMS CMS
CMS
CMS 4
CMS
2023 2022
9,758,294 2,133,877
9,758,294 2,133,877
2023 2022
1,861,552 2,392,806
9 4,221,521 3,761,366
1,866,536 986,151
24,496,995

32,446,604 7,140,323
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2023 2022
204,697,088,543 246,858,166,114
269,024,480,057 238,775,648,860
(234,030,621,840) (280,936,726,431)
239,690,946,760 204,697,088,543

1%

2023 2022
653,160 602,935
192,808 171,102
207,604 184,263
103,819 92,132
2,867,266 2,547,884
28,104 27,451
168,760 135,599
4,221,521 3,761,366

FRS102

20%
URJ
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2023
us
2,396,909,612
239,690,946,760
1 0.01
12.
1997
1997 739 D
1997 2B
13.
14.
2023 12 31 2024 4 26
773,693,057
15.

2024 4 26
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2022 2021
2,046,971,033 2,468,581,809
204,697,088,543 246,858,166,114
0.01 0.01
739 B
8
743,728,082
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(©))
us
2023 12 31
(%)
(2022 2.67%)
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.50% 01-Mar-24 30,000,000 29,742,332 124
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.50% 04-Mar-24 15,500,000 15,359,653 0.64
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.52% 20-May-24 30,000,000 29,385,683 1.23
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.38% 17-Jun-24 25,000,000 24,398,903 1.02
98,886,571 4.13
(2022 8.53%)
Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG 5.47% 15-Feb-24 25,000,000 24,842,658 1.04
Republic of Austria5.44% 12-Jan-24 30,000,000 29,964,230 1.25
Republic of Austria5.49% 18-Jan-24 30,000,000 29,936,836 1.25
84,743,724 354
(2022 1.83%)
Export Development Canada 5.51% 15-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,810,229 1.25
Export Development Canada 5.45% 02-Apr-24 28,000,000 27,630,240 1.15
Export Development Canada 5.28% 23-May-24 25,000,000 24,496,995 1.02
Export Development Canada 5.50% 17-Jun-24 30,000,000 29,264,537 1.22
111,202,001 4.64
(2022 5.82%)
Municipality Finance Plc 5.48% 24-Jan-24 28,000,000 27,915,933 1.16
Municipality Finance Pic 5.65% 05-Feb-24 21,000,000 20,896,514 0.87
Municipality Finance Plc 5.53% 09-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,836,412 1.25
78,648,859 3.28
(2022 10.71%)
Acoss (Agence Central) 5.52% 26-Jan-24 30,000,000 29,900,154 1.25
Acoss (Agence Central) 5.40% 21-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,786,940 124
Acoss (Agence Central) 5.41% 21-Feb-24 25,000,000 24,822,047 1.04
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations 5.55% 22-Jan-24 35,000,000 34,904,263 1.46
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations 5.38% 19-Mar-24 20,000,000 19,778,841 0.82
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations 5.31% 28-Mar-24 25,000,000 24,694,353 1.03
SNCF SA 5.58% 26-Feb-24 25,000,000 24,798,468 1.03
SNCF SA 5.45% 14-Mar-24 40,000,000 39,581,871 1.65
SNCF SA 5.38% 28-Mar-24 40,000,000 39,504,149 1.65
267,771,086 11.17
(2022 18.93%)
Erste Abwicklungsanst 5.62% 25-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,920,330 1.04
Erste Abwicklungsanst 5.56% 07-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,844,674 1.25

Erste Abwicklungsanst 5.48% 26-Feb-24 50,000,000 49,602,659 207
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(%)
(2022 18.93%)
KFW 5.50% 05-Jan-24 40,000,000 39,993,976 1.67
KFW 5.50% 11-Jan-24 30,000,000 29,968,361 1.25
KFW 5.46% 29-Jan-24 40,000,000 39,851,088 1.66
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 5.51% 31-Jan-24 40,000,000 39,836,995 1.66
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 5.36% 13-Mar-24 40,000,000 39,594,202 1.65
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 5.35% 22-Feb-24 29,000,000 28,791,672 1.20
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 5.38% 27-Feb-24 45,000,000 44,641,934 1.86
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 5.38% 21-Mar-24 30,000,000 29,659,465 1.24
396,705,356 16.55
(2022 0.00%)
Banque Et Caisse D'Epargne de L'et 5.52% 15-Apr-24 30,000,000 29,539,555 1.23
29,539,555 1.23
(2022 6.57%)
Bank Nederlandse Gemeenten 5.40% 12-Mar-24 25,000,000 24,748,434 1.03
24,748,434 1.03
(2022 2.67%)
New Zealand Government 5.52% 17-Jan-24 15,000,000 14,970,516 0.62
New Zealand Government 5.49% 06-Mar-24 30,000,000 29,720,233 124
New Zealand Government 5.54% 19-Mar-24 25,000,000 24,716,818 1.03
69,407,567 2.89
(2022 4.63%)
Asian Development Bank 5.42% 15-Mar-24 50,000,000 49,472,516 2.06
49,472,516 2.06
(2022 8.85%)
Eurofima 5.52% 10-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,977,320 1.04
Eurofima 5.40% 16-Jan-24 15,000,000 14,973,073 0.63
Eurofima 5.53% 17-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,950,727 1.04
Eurofima 5.45% 14-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,815,523 1.24
Eurofima 5.42% 20-Feb-24 17,000,000 16,880,801 0.71
European Investment Bank 5.60% 02-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,867,973 1.25
European Investment Bank 5.46% 16-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,807,043 124
European Investment Bank 5.44% 20-Feb-24 18,000,000 17,873,913 0.75
European Investment Bank 5.45% 20-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,789,662 124
International Development Association 5.48% 09-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,981,244 1.04
International Development Association 5.53% 17-Jan-24 20,000,000 19,960,618 0.83
International Development Association 5.57% 25-Jan-24 35,000,000 34,887,875 1.46
International Development Association 5.61% 27-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,752,298 1.24
328,518,070 13.71
(2022 3.89%)
City of Gothenburg 5.59% 16-Jan-24 20,000,000 19,963,409 0.83
City of Gothenburg 5.59% 13-Feb-24 20,000,000 19,878,143 0.83

City of Gothenburg 5.52% 07-Mar-24 35,000,000 34,666,704 1.45

104/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(%)

(2022 3.89%)
Kingdom of Sweden 5.52% 09-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,836,034 1.25
Kommuninvest | Sverige AB 5.46% 16-Feb-24 23,000,000 22,862,035 0.95
Kommuninvest | Sverige AB 5.48% 02-May-24 20,000,000 19,645,324 0.82
146,851,649 6.13

(2022 6.07%)

Bank of England 5.58% 04-Jan-24 30,000,000 30,000,000 1.25
Bank of England 5.56% 16-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,954,538 1.04
Bank of England 5.51% 19-Jan-24 35,000,000 34,920,761 1.46
89,875,299 375
1,776,370,687 74.11
(2022 0.10%) 3,717,320 0.16

(2022 81.27%) 1,780,088,007 74.27

105/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

us
2023 12 31
Acoss (Agence Central) 4.99% 15-Jun-23 45,000,000 —
Acoss (Agence Central) 5.09% 06-Jul-23 50,000,000 —
Asian Development Bank 4.77% 22-May-23 50,000,000 —
Asian Development Bank 4.92% 06-Jun-23 50,000,000 —
Asian Development Bank 5.26% 02-Oct-23 50,000,000 —
Asian Development Bank 5.45% 15-Dec-23 50,000,000 —
Asian Development Bank 5.42% 15-Mar-24 50,000,000 —
Bank of England 4.91% 06-Jul-23 50,000,000 —
Erste Abwicklungsanst 5.48% 26-Feb-24 50,000,000 —
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.22% 01-Sep-23 58,000,000 —
Municipality Finance Plc 4.79% 02-May-23 50,000,000 —
Municipality Finance Plc 5.10% 02-Aug-23 50,000,000 —
Nederlandse Waterschapshank 4.62% 06-Apr-23 50,000,000 —
Nederlandse Waterschapsbank 4.98% 11-Jul-23 75,000,000 —
Nederlandse Waterschapsbank 5.37% 11-Oct-23 75,000,000 —
Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG 4.75% 15-May-23 50,000,000 —
Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG 5.20% 24-Aug-23 50,000,000 —
Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG 5.46% 24-Nov-23 50,000,000 —
Republic of Austria 5.42% 02-Nov-23 50,000,000 —
Saxony-Anhalt 5.29% 19-Sep-23 50,000,000 —

20
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U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Financial Position

Asat 31% December 2023

2023 2022

Notes UsD usb
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 5 639,509,915 388,326,664
Debtors 6 9,758,294 2,133,877
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,34 1,780,088,007 1,663,650,815
Total Assets 2,429,356,216 2,054,111,356
Liabilities
Creditors 7 32,446,604 7,140,323
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 32,446,604 7,140,323
Net Assets attributable to Hol ders of
Redeemable Participating Units 2,396,909,612 2,046,971,033

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Peter Callaghan Keiji Nakamura

Date: 26 April 2024
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U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31% December 2023

2023 2022

Notes UsD UsSD
Income
Net gain on financia instruments at fair value through profit or loss 2 112,198,063 35,590,279
Other income - 4,784
Total income 112,198,063 35,595,063
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 9 2,442,678 1,371,946
Administration fees 9 711,829 415,850
Sub-Custodian fees 9 766,550 447,806
Depositary fees 9 383,292 223,810
Distributors feesand Agent Security fees 9 10,936,657 6,331,119
Audit fees 29,958 24,996
Other fees and expenses 283,090 373,190
Total expenses 15,554,054 9,188,717
Finance costs
Distributions 2 (96,644,009) (26,406,346)

Change in Net Assets attributabl e to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Units after distributions - -

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemabl e Participating Units

For the year ended 31% December 2023

2023 2022
UsD usD
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units at 1¥ January 2,046,971,033 2,468,581,809
Redeemable Participating Units issued 2,690,244,801 2,387,756,489
Redeemable Participating Units redeemed (2,340,306,222) (2,809,367,265)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units at 3®
December 2,396,909,612 2,046,971,033

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financia Statements
31% December 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Gaika MMF (the “Fund”) was constituted as an Irish domiciled unit trust, by atrust deed
dated 5" July 1996 as amended by supplemental dated 17" July 1996 and as amended and restated

on 2% January 2019. Effective 23IrOI June 2006, the duration of the Fund was extended for an
indefinite period. The Fund is an umbrella unit trust organised under and complying with the Unit
Trusts Act, 1990. The Fund was approved by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) asa

Retail Investor Alternative Investment Fund on 18th June 2015. On 21% January 2019, the
requirements of the European Union Money Market Fund Regulation (“MMFR”) came into force for

the Fund. Accordingly, on 21% January 2019, the sub-funds of the Fund were authorised by the
Central Bank as Public Debt Constant Net Asset Vaue Money Market Funds. The Fund was

approved by the Central Bank as aRetail Investor AIF CNAV MMF on 21% January 2019. A new
Prospectus has been approved by the Central Bank dated 3% July 2020.

An addendum to the Fund' s prospectus dated 8th March 2021 was noted by the Central Bank to
reflect the introduction of the Taxonomy Regulation in the European Union ("EU”). For the purpose
of the Taxonomy Regulation, it should be noted that the investments underlying this financial
product do not take into account the EU criteriafor environmentally sustainable economic activities.

On 23Ir0| December 2022, a second addendum to the Prospectus was issued to clarify that the
Investment Manager does not consider the principal adverse impacts of investment decisionson
sustainability factors for the Portfolios at financial product level within the meaning of Article 7 of
Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 November 2019 on
sustainability- related disclosuresin the financial services sector (“SFDR”).

The Fund is an umbrellafund in which different classes of units may be issued from time to time.
Each class represents interests in afund comprising a separate and distinct portfolio of investments.
The classes of unitsinissue were U.S. Dollar Portfolio (the “ Sub-Fund”). These financial statements
relate solely to the Sub-Fund.

The Alternative Investment Fund Manager of the Fund is SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the
“AlIFM™).

The primary activity of the Sub-Fund is to preserve principal value and maintain a high degree of

liquidity while providing current income by investing in high quality fixed and floating rate debt
instruments traded on a recognised exchange listed in the Trust Deed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-Fund are as follows:

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention, as adjusted for the revaluation of financial instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss and in compliance with Irish Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (accounting standards
issued by the UK Financial Reporting Council, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish law) (“FRS
1027). Thefinancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis of accounting.

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with FRS 102 requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are summarised in the period in which the estimate isrevised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periodsiif the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Investments
This category has two sub-categories; financial assets and liabilities held for trading, and those
designated by management at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

The Sub-Fund classifies itsinvestments in debt securities as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Investments consist of short term debt obligations, which are valued at fair value using
an amortised cost technique (i.e. at their acquisition cost as adjusted for the amortisation of premium
or accretion of discount) as the best estimate of fair value. The AIFM continuously reviews the
amortised cost method to ensure that investments are stated at their fair value.

Cash and other liquid assets are valued at their face value with coupon interest receivable accrued,
where applicable, to the end of the relevant day.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

I nvestments (continued)
Under FRS 102, Fair Value Measurement, the Fund uses the recognition and measurement
provisions of International Accounting Standards 39, “Financial Instruments’.

Recognition/derecognition

Regular-way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date — the date on which
the Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. Investments are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Foreign Currencies

Assets and Liabilities are measured using the currency (the functional currency) of the primary
economic environment, in which the Sub-Fund operates, thisis U.S. Dollar (“USD”). Assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD at the exchange rates ruling at
the year end date. Non-monetary foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities that are carried
at fair value are converted into the base currency at the date the fair values are determined. Foreign
currency gains or losses arising from trading activities are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the year.

Foreign Currency Trandation

The Sub-Fund's unitholders are from Japan, with the subscriptions and redemptions of the
Redeemabl e Participating Units denominated in USD. The performance of the Sub-Fund is measured
and reported to the unitholdersin USD. The AIFM considers the currency as the currency that most
faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions of the
Sub-Fund. The financial statements are presented in USD which is the Sub-Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

Income

Interest income is accounted for on an effective yield basis. Discounts and premiums on securities
are amortised and accreted on the effective yield basis over thelife of the respective securities.
These are presented as net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or lossin the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Redeemabl e Participating Units

Redeemable Participating Units are redeemable at the unitholders option and are classified as
financial liabilities in accordance with FRS 102 Section 22. The Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per Unit
ismaintained at USDO0.01 through the declaration of distributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Redeemabl e Participating Units (continued)

The Redeemabl e Participating Units can be put back into the Sub-Fund at any time for cash equal to
aproportional share of the Sub-Fund's NAV. The Redeemable Participating Unit is carried at the
redemption amount which is payable at the year end date if the unitholder expressed the right to put
the unit back in the Sub-Fund.

Dividend Policy

The AIFM declares distributions in respect of the Sub-Fund on each dealing day. The amount per
unit distributed from the Sub-Fund is a sum equal to the amount required to maintain the relevant
NAV per unit on each dealing day to 0.01 units of the currency of the Sub-Fund.

Cash Flow Statement

The Fund has availed of the exemption available to open ended investment funds under FRS 102
Section 7.1 not to prepare a cash flow statement.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose
fair value is based on:

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

those involving inputs other than quoted pricesincluded in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and

those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

2023 2022
usD usD

Financial assets at fair vaue through profit or loss
Debt obligations 1,776,370,687 1,661,630,828
Coupon interest receivable 3,717,320 2,019,987
1,780,088,007 1,663,650,815

All securities held by the Sub-Fund are classified as Level 2. There were no significant transfers of
assets between levels for the years ended 31™ December 2023 and 2022,
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial Assets and Liabilities not measured at Fair Vaue

The financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss are short-term
financia assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value. Cash
including fixed deposits are categorised as Level 1 and all other financia assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value through profit or loss are categorised as Level 2 inthe fair value hierarchy.

INVESTMENTS
The main risks arising from the Sub-Fund's financial instruments can be summarised as follows:

Market Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the
potential loss the Sub-Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price
movements. Market risk comprises three types of risk: price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk.

Price Risk

Pricerisk isthe risk that the fair value of the Sub-Fund's financial instruments will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices caused by factors other than interest rates or foreign currency
movement. The financial instruments of the Sub-Fund are not exposed directly to price risk.

On February 24, 2022, Russialaunched amilitary invasion into Ukraine. Russia's invasion of
Ukraine carries significant risks for the world economy. The ultimate impacts on the Sub-Fund of
the consequential geo-political instability, financial market volatility, inflation and imposition of
sanctions on Russia, and in an environment with relatively higher interest rates, are not possible to
forecast at thistime.

Currency Risk
Currency risk represents the potential losses that the Sub-Fund might suffer due to adverse

movements in non-functional currency exposures. All the investments of each Class are denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant Class with the effect that the Statement of Financial
Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income will not be significantly affected by currency
movements.
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Therisk is defined as therisk that the fair value of afinancial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The risk arises on financial instruments whose fair value is affected
by changes in interest rates.

The tables below and overleaf summarise the Sub-Fund' s exposure to interest rate risks at the end of
the year. They include the Sub-Fund's assets and trading liabilities at fair value, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates:

Non -
Lessthan 1 1-3 4-6 interest
2023 Month Months Months bearing Tota
usb usb usb usb usb
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 639,509,915 - - - 639,509,915
Debtors - - - 9,758,294 9,758,294
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 600,449,567 995,277,203 184,361,237 - 1,780,088,007
Total assets 1,239,959,482 995,277,203 184,361,237 9,758,294 2,429,356,216
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets
atributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units)
Creditors - - - 32,446,604 32,446,604
Totd liabilities - - - 32,446,604 32,446,604

Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 1,239,959,482 995,277,203 184,361,237 N/A N/A
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INVESTMENTS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
Interest Rate Risk (continued)
Non -
Lessthan 1 1-3 4-6 interest

2022 Month Months Months bearing Totd

USD USD USD USD USD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 388,326,664 - - - 388,326,664
Debtors - - - 2,133,877 2,133,877
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 606,124,714 1,037,813,649 19,712,452 - 1,663,650,815
Tota assets 994,451,378 1,037,813,649 19,712,452 2,133,877 2,054,111,356
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets
atributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units)
Creditors - - - 7,140,323 7,140,323
Tota liabilities - - - 7,140,323 7,140,323
Totd Interest Sensitivity Gap 994,451,378 1,037,813,649 19,712,452 N/A N/A

The benchmark rate for determining interest receipts for the floating rate investments is based on
LIBOR for the Sub-Fund plus or minus specified basis points.

A weekly mark to market evaluation is carried out by the Investment Manager. Separately from this
test, the Investment Manager independently runs at least weekly mark to market evaluations; this
includes a stress test worked out against ayield curve change (currently the Investment Manager sets
a 50 and 100 basis points parallel interest curve rise).

The tables below show the percentage effect to the unit price where market rates move between
minus 50 basis points and plus 100 basis points:

2023 +100bps +50bps -25bps -50bps
USD Portfolio -0.11% -0.06% 0.03% 0.06%
2022 +100bps +50bps -25bps -50bps

USD Portfolio -0.10% -0.05% 0.03% 0.05%
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Sub-Fund may not be able to rapidly adjust the size
of itsinvestment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a reasonable price. The
Sub-Fund isinvested in assets, which are realisable and overnight cash balances of around 15% are
normally retained, which are increased for known outflows and during market disruption. The
Investment Adviser contacts distributors on a frequent basisin order to obtain information on
potential sizable redemptions. In times of market disruption realising assets may become more
difficult, when thisis observed it is monitored and where necessary maturities are shortened and
overnight cash isincreased.

The AIFM shall establish, implement and consistently apply prudent and rigorous liquidity
management procedures for ensuring compliance with the weekly liquidity thresholds applicable to
the Sub-Fund. In ensuring compliance with the weekly liquidity thresholds, where weekly maturing
assets fall below (i) 30% of the NAV of the relevant Sub-Fund and the net daily redemptions on a
single dealing day exceed 10% or (ii) 10% of the Sub-Fund' s NAV, the AIFM shall be immediately
informed and the AIFM shall undertake a documented assessment to determine the appropriate
course of action with regard to the interests of the unitholders of that Sub-Fund to decide whether to
apply one or more of the measures permitted under the MMFR.

The liquidity risk table below analyses the Sub-Fund'’ s financial assetsinto relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the year end date to the contractual maturity date:

2023 2022
Cash 26.47% 18.94%
2-7 days 2.90% 5.85%
8-30 days 18.50% 18.76%
31-90 days 44.50% 55.49%
91-180 days 7.63% 0.96%
181-365 days 0.00% 0.00%
Over 365 days 0.00% 0.00%

All financia liabilities are due within 1 month.
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is measured by the loss the Sub-Fund would incur if its counterparties failed to perform
pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on
parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default. The Sub-Fund selects
only established counterparties that have sufficient experience, knowledge and creditworthiness. All
transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of
default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has
received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the
broker. All of the cash held on overnight deposit is held with a carefully selected list of banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency by abank may cause the Sub-Fund' s rights with respect to the cash held
on deposit to be delayed or limited. The Investment Manager monitors the credit rating of these
banks, as reported by S& P Global and Moody’s.

The Sub-Fund is also exposed to credit risk from term issuance invested in, resulting from a
borrower’s failure to meet their contractual obligations. There can be no assurance that issuers of the
securities or other instruments in which the Sub-Fund invests will not be subject to credit difficulties
leading to the loss of some or all of the sumsinvested in such securities or instruments or payments
due on such securities or instruments.

SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited as Depositary has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
(London Branch) as its custodian (the “Custodian™). Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London
Branch) have, in turn, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH & Co.”), astheir sub-
custodian (the “Sub-Custodian™). BBH & Co. has a Fitch credit rating of A+ at the year end (2022:
A+). The investments and cash of the Sub-Fund were held by the Sub-Custodian at the year end,
except where cash was placed in the Cash Management Sweep (“CMS”). Bankruptcy or insolvency
of the Custodian or Sub-Custodian may have caused the Sub-Fund's rights with respect to its
investments in debt securities held by the Custodian or Sub-Custodian to be delayed or limited. The
Sub-Fund's securities were maintained by the Sub-Custodian in segregated accounts. Thusin the
event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Sub-Custodian, the Sub-Fund' s assets were segregated. The
Sub-Fund would, however, been exposed to the credit risk of the Sub-Custodian, the CMS
counterparties, or any depository used by the Custodian, in relation to the Sub-Fund's cash. In the
event of theinsolvency or bankruptcy of the Sub-Custodian, any of the CM S counterparties, or any
depository used by the Custodian, the Sub-Fund would have been treated as a general creditor of
such entity in relation to cash holdings of the Sub-Fund.
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

Any overnight cash balances held in the Collection Account (* Collection Account™), including prior
to being invested in a Portfolio or being paid out to unitholdersin relation to repurchases of units,
may have been the subject of a cash sweep program (the “ Collection Account Cash Sweep
Program”). The Collection Account Cash Sweep Program involved placing such moniesinto one or
more omnibus client accounts held with third party counterparties which have a credit rating of ‘A’
or above at least by S& P Global, Moody’s or Fitch (“Collection Account Cash Sweep
Counterparties’). Unitholders should note that, as a result of the Collection Account Cash Sweep
Program, unitholders would have counterparty exposure to the Collection Account Cash Sweep
Counterparties. “ Collection Account” means the account operated by the AIFM which was used for
(i) the receipt of subscription monies from investors to the Sub-Fund, and (ii) repayment of
redemption and/or distribution proceeds to unitholders.

Aninvestment universe which lists all the rating eligible securities that the Sub-Fund hastraded inis
maintained and monitored to record ratings changes by Moody’s or S& P Global:

2023 2022
Aaa 41.80% 45.04%
Aal 11.08% 15.28%*
Aa2 13.39% 17.00%*
Aa3 9.24% 6.06%
Al 24.49% 16.62%

At the time of purchase, all investments will be one of the two highest short-term rating categories
(within which there may be sub-categories or graduations indicating relative standing) by one
recognised rating agency, including A1 and A2 for S& P Global Ratings, P1 and P2 for Moody’ s
Investor Services.

*2022 percentages have been amended to reflect the current year rating category.

The table below shows the percentages of security type held by the Sub-Fund:

2023 2022
Cash 26.47% 18.94%
Commercial Paper 72.58% 79.48%
Bonds 0.95% 0.37%
Finnish T-Bills 0.00% 1.21%

All gaing/(losses) from trading in investment for the years ended 31% December 2023 and 2022 are
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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CASH INCLUDING HXED DEPOSITS

Cash balances are held with the Sub-Custodian except when placed in the CM S or when placed on
deposit with a separate credit institution. The CM S involves placing monies into one or more
omnibus client accounts held with third party counterparties. As aresult of the CMS a portfolio will
have counterparty exposure to the CMS Counterparties. Cash balances and fixed deposits are
detailed in Note 4.

The Sub-Fund has agreed in certain limited circumstances to subscribe to the Sub-Custodian’s Cash
Management Service to invest available USD demand deposit balances and uncommitted foreign
currency denominated demand deposit balances in unrestricted overnight deposit instrumentsin one
of the approved financial institutions. Money is held in these accounts temporarily and only for short
periods when money is being wired from investors to the Sub-Fund for contributions, when money
for redemptions is being wired from the Sub-Fund or when fees are being paid out of the Sub-Fund
to recognised third party vendors.

Such deposits may be subject to both sovereign actions in the jurisdiction of the deposit institution
and sovereign actionsin the jurisdiction of the currency, including but not limited to freeze, seizure,
or diminution. In any case, the risk associated with the repayment of principal and payment of
interest on such instruments by the institution with whom the deposit is ultimately placed will be
exclusively for the Sub-Fund's accounts. All cash was held by the Sub-Custodian at the year end,
except if placed inthe CMS.

DEBTORS

2023 2022

usb usb
Receivable for fund units sold 9,758,294 2,133,877

9,758,294 2,133,877

CREDITORS

2023 2022

usb usD
Payable for fund units repurchased 1,861,552 2,392,806
Fees payable (Note 9) 4,221,521 3,761,366
Distribution payable 1,866,536 986,151
Payable for investments purchased 24,496,995

32,446,604 7,140,323
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REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITSISSUED AND REDEEMED DURING THE
YEAR

2023 2022
Opening Outstanding Units 204,697,088,543 246,858,166,114
Number of Unitsissued 269,024,480,057 238,775,648,860
Number of Units redeemed (234,030,621,840) (280,936,726,431)
Closing Outstanding Units 239,690,946,760 204,697,088,543

FEES AND EXPENSES

The Sub-Fund pays afee to the AIFM and the Depositary, the aggregate of which isless than 1% per
annum of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. Thisfeeis payable quarterly in arrears and is accrued on a
daily basis, save in respect of that portion of the AIFM’s fee which is payable to the Investment
Manager, which portion of the fee shall accrue daily and be payable twice per quarter. The
Investment Manager remunerates the Investment Adviser. The Agent Securities Company as well as
the Distributors are reimbursed their out-of-pocket expenses directly out of the administration
expenses of the relevant Portfolio. The Sub-Fund also reimburses the AIFM all of its administration
expenses.

The Depositary is repaid its disbursements out of the Sub-Fund, which includes the fees and
disbursements of any sub-custodian.

The AIFM pays out of the fees received by it from the Sub-Fund, the fees of the Investment
Manager, the Distributor and the Agent Company.

Fees payable at the year end are asfollows:

2023 2022

usD usb
Investment Manager fees 653,160 602,935
Administration fees 192,808 171,102
Sub-Custodian fees 207,604 184,263
Depositary fees 103,819 92,132
Distributors feesand Agent Security fees 2,867,266 2,547,884
Audit fees 28,104 27,451
Other fees and expenses 168,760 135,599

4,221,521 3,761,366
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business. The
Administrator, Depositary, Investment Manager, Investment Adviser and Distributor/Agent
Company are deemed to be related parties under FRS 102. Fees incurred with related parties during
the year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Amounts payable to related
parties at the year end are disclosed in Note 9.

In accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank AlF Rulebook, al transactions carried out
with the Fund by the AIFM, Depositary and Investment Manager or by delegates or group
companies (“connected parties’) must be carried out as if negotiated at arm’s length and be in the
best interests of unitholders. The AIFM is satisfied that there are arrangements in place (evidenced
by written procedures) to ensure that the obligations set out above are applied to al transactions with
connected parties and transactions with connected parties entered into during the year complied with
the obligations.

The number of investors that held more than 20% of the Net Assets attributable to Redeemable

Participating Units at trading valuation of the Fund at the year ended 31% December 2023 is 2 (2022
2). Included in this number is Daiwa Securities Co. Limited and Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley
Securities Co., Ltd. Daiwa Securities Co. Limited isthe Fund's Distributor in Japan.

NAV HISTORY

2023 2022 2021
USD Portfolio
NAV USD2,396,909,612 USD2,046,971,033 USD2,468,581,809
Number of Units 239,690,946, 760 204,697,088,543 246,858,166,114

NAV  per Unit usDO0.01 USDO0.01 usDO0.01
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TAXATION

Under current law and practice, the Fund qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in
Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. The Fund is not chargeable to Irish
tax on itsincome or capital gains. However, Irish tax can arise on the happening of a*“chargeable
event” in the Fund. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to unitholders or any
encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of units and any deemed disposal of unitsfor Irish
tax purposes arising as a result of the holding of the units at the end of each eight year period
beginning with the acquisition of such units. No tax will arise in respect of chargeable events in
respect of a unitholder who isan exempt Irish investor (as outlined in Section 739D of the Taxes
Consolidation Act, 1997, (as amended) or who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in
Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the chargeable event, provided, in each case, that an
appropriate valid declaration in accordance with Schedule 2B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997
(as amended) is held by the Fund. Capital gains, dividends and coupon interest received by the Fund
may be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the country of origin and such taxes may not be
recoverable by the Fund or its unitholders.

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Sub-Fund does not have any soft commission arrangements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31% December 2023 and up to 26" April 2024 there were subscriptions of
USD743,728,082 into the Sub-Fund and redemptions of USD773,693,057 from the Sub-Fund.

There were no other events subsequent to the year end to the date the financial statements were
approved, which require disclosure in the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of the AIFM on 26th April 2024.
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U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO
Schedule of Investments
st
31" December 2023
Far
Nominal Vaue % of
Debt Obligations Holding usD NAV
Australia (2022: 2.67%)
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.50% 01-Mar-24 30,000,000 29,742,332 124
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.50% 04-Mar-24 15,500,000 15,359,653 0.64
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.52% 20-May-24 30,000,000 29,385,683 1.23
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.38% 17-Jun-24 25,000,000 24,398,903 1.02
98,886,571 4.13
Austria (2022: 8.53%)
Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG 5.47% 15-Feb-24 25,000,000 24,842,658 1.04
Republic of Austria5.44% 12-Jan-24 30,000,000 29,964,230 1.25
Republic of Austria’5.49% 18-Jan-24 30,000,000 29,936,836 1.25
84,743,724 354
Canada (2022: 1.83%)
Export Development Canada 5.51% 15-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,810,229 125
Export Development Canada 5.45% 02-Apr-24 28,000,000 27,630,240 1.15
Export Development Canada 5.28% 23-May-24 25,000,000 24,496,995 1.02
Export Development Canada 5.50% 17-Jun-24 30,000,000 29,264,537 122
111,202,001 4.64
Finland (2022: 5.82%)
Municipality Finance Plc 5.48% 24-Jan-24 28,000,000 27,915,933 1.16
Municipality Finance Plc 5.65% 05-Feb-24 21,000,000 20,896,514 0.87
Municipality Finance Pic 5.53% 09-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,836,412 1.25
78,648,859 3.28
France (2022; 10.71%)
Acoss (Agence Central) 5.52% 26-Jan-24 30,000,000 29,900,154 1.25
Acoss (Agence Central) 5.40% 21-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,786,940 124
Acoss (Agence Central) 5.41% 21-Feb-24 25,000,000 24,822,047 1.04
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations 5.55% 22-Jan-24 35,000,000 34,904,263 1.46
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations 5.38% 19-Mar-24 20,000,000 19,778,841 0.82
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations 5.31% 28-Mar-24 25,000,000 24,694,353 1.03
SNCF SA 5.58% 26-Feb-24 25,000,000 24,798,468 1.03
SNCF SA 5.45% 14-Mar-24 40,000,000 39,581,871 1.65
SNCF SA 5.38% 28-Mar-24 40,000,000 39,504,149 1.65

267,771,086 11.17
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U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO
Schedule of Investments
st
31" December 2023
(Continued)
Far
Nominal Vaue % of
Debt Obligations (continued) Holding usD NAV
Germany (2022: 18.93%)
Erste Abwicklungsanst 5.62% 25-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,920,330 1.04
Erste Abwicklungsanst 5.56% 07-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,844,674 125
Erste Abwicklungsanst 5.48% 26-Feb-24 50,000,000 49,602,659 2.07
KFW 5.50% 05-Jan-24 40,000,000 39,993,976 167
KFW 5.50% 11-Jan-24 30,000,000 29,968,361 1.25
KFW 5.46% 29-Jan-24 40,000,000 39,851,088 1.66
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 5.51% 31-Jan-24 40,000,000 39,836,995 1.66
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 5.36% 13-Mar-24 40,000,000 39,594,202 1.65
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 5.35% 22-Feb-24 29,000,000 28,791,672 1.20
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 5.38% 27-Feb-24 45,000,000 44,641,934 1.86
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 5.38% 21-Mar-24 30,000,000 29,659,465 1.24
396,705,356 16.55
Luxembourg (2022: 0.00%)
Banque Et Caisse D'Epargne de L'et 5.52% 15-Apr-24 30,000,000 29,539,555 123
29,539,555 1.23
Netherlands (2022: 6.57%)
Bank Nederlandse Gemeenten 5.40% 12-Mar-24 25,000,000 24,748,434 1.03
24,748,434 1.03
New Zedand (2022: 2.67%)
New Zealand Government 5.52% 17-Jan-24 15,000,000 14,970,516 0.62
New Zealand Government 5.49% 06-Mar-24 30,000,000 29,720,233 124
New Zealand Government 5.54% 19-Mar-24 25,000,000 24,716,818 1.03
69,407,567 2.89
Philippines (2022: 4.63%)
Asian Development Bank 5.42% 15-Mar-24 50,000,000 49,472,516 2.06
49,472,516 2.06
Supranationa (2022: 8.85%)
Eurofima 5.52% 10-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,977,320 1.04
Eurofima 5.40% 16-Jan-24 15,000,000 14,973,073 0.63
Eurofima 5.53% 17-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,950,727 1.04
Eurofima 5.45% 14-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,815,523 1.24
Eurofima 5.42% 20-Feb-24 17,000,000 16,880,801 0.71
European Investment Bank 5.60% 02-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,867,973 1.25
European Investment Bank 5.46% 16-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,807,043 124

European Investment Bank 5.44% 20-Feb-24 18,000,000 17,873,913 0.75
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U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO
Schedule of Investments
st
31" December 2023
(Continued)
Fair
Nominal Vaue % of
Debt Obligations (continued) Holding usD NAV
Supranationa (2022: 8.85%) (continued)
European Investment Bank 5.45% 20-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,789,662 124
International Development Association 5.48% 09-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,981,244 1.04
International Development Association 5.53% 17-Jan-24 20,000,000 19,960,618 0.83
International Development Association 5.57% 25-Jan-24 35,000,000 34,887,875 1.46
International Development Association 5.61% 27-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,752,298 1.24
328,518,070 13.71
Sweden (2022: 3.89%)
City of Gothenburg 5.59% 16-Jan-24 20,000,000 19,963,409 0.83
City of Gothenburg 5.59% 13-Feb-24 20,000,000 19,878,143 0.83
City of Gothenburg 5.52% 07-Mar-24 35,000,000 34,666,704 145
Kingdom of Sweden 5.52% 09-Feb-24 30,000,000 29,836,034 125
Kommuninvest | Sverige AB 5.46% 16-Feb-24 23,000,000 22,862,035 0.95
Kommuninvest | Sverige AB 5.48% 02-May-24 20,000,000 19,645,324 0.82
146,851,649 6.13
United Kingdom (2022: 6.07%)
Bank of England 5.58% 04-Jan-24 30,000,000 30,000,000 125
Bank of England 5.56% 16-Jan-24 25,000,000 24,954,538 1.04
Bank of England 5.51% 19-Jan-24 35,000,000 34,920,761 1.46
89,875,299 3.75
Debt Obligations 1,776,370,687 74.11
Coupon interest receivable (2022: 0.10%) 3,717,320 0.16

Total Debt Obligations (2022: 81.27%) 1,780,088,007 74.27
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U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO
Schedule of Portfolio Movements (Unaudited)
st
31" December 2023

Acquisitions Disposds

Nominal Nominal

Acoss (Agence Central) 4.99% 15-Jun-23 45,000,000 -
Acoss (Agence Central) 5.09% 06-Jul-23 50,000,000 -
Asian Development Bank 4.77% 22-May-23 50,000,000 -
Asian Development Bank 4.92% 06-Jun-23 50,000,000 -
Asian Development Bank 5.26% 02-Oct-23 50,000,000 -
Asian Development Bank 5.45% 15-Dec-23 50,000,000 -
Asian Development Bank 5.42% 15-Mar-24 50,000,000 -
Bank of England 4.91% 06-Jul-23 50,000,000 -
Erste Abwicklungsanst 5.48% 26-Feb-24 50,000,000 -
Export Finance and Insurance Corp 5.22% 01-Sep-23 58,000,000 -
Municipality Finance Plc 4.79% 02-May-23 50,000,000 -
Municipality Finance Plc 5.10% 02-Aug-23 50,000,000 -
Nederlandse Waterschapshank 4.62% 06-Apr-23 50,000,000 -
Nederlandse Waterschapsbank 4.98% 11-Jul-23 75,000,000 -
Nederlandse Waterschapsbank 5.37% 11-Oct-23 75,000,000 -
Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG 4.75% 15-May-23 50,000,000 -
Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG 5.20% 24-Aug-23 50,000,000 -
Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG 5.46% 24-Nov-23 50,000,000 -
Republic of Austria 5.42% 02-Nov-23 50,000,000 -
Saxony-Anhalt 5.29% 19-Sep-23 50,000,000 -

The above represents the statement of changes in the composition of the portfolio during the year, as
required by the Central Bank of Ireland. This shows the largest 20 acquisitionsin the year. It is not
intended to provide areconciliation between holdings at the beginning of the year and holdings at the end
of the year.

Note: There were no disposals of investments in the year. All investments mature in the normal course of
business.
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(2024 )
( )
2,368,964 ,464.22 371,690,524
2,019,747.50 316,898
2,366,944,716.72 371,373,626
236,694,449,251
0.01 2

128/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)

@
50

14

)

)

()

MMF
®

129/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
40
2024 40 ( 7,881 ) 6,250
( 105 750 )

0

130/280



(

)

(

)

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MMF
MMF
( )
) (
)
)
Q) ) (
MMF
MMF
(
MMF
(
)

MMF

131/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 MMF (
2,467,990,564.78 272,978,804,129 1,686,489,697.09 )

2,366,944,716.72

101,045,848.06

272,978,804,129

1,686,489,697.09

132/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

131

23 103

2024 30 UFJ
168.12

133/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

2023 30

2023 30 2022 30

( ) « ) ( ) « )
6,581,908 1,106,550 5,779,294 971,615
607,807 102,185 798,359 134,220
7,189,715 1,208,735 6,577,653 1,105,835
14,591,653 2,453,149 14,288,941 2,402,257
15,007,966 2,523,139 35,899,468 6,035,419

22,200,200 3,732,298
51,799,819 8,708,586 50,188,409 8,437,675
10 (5,006,094) (841,625) (5,327,188) (895,607)
46,793,725 7,866,961 44,861,221 7,542,068
53,983,440 9,075,696 51,438,874 8,647,903
11 62,992,338 10,590,272 62,992,338 10,590,272
12 4,050,000 680,886 4,050,000 680,886
212,328 35,697 (28,176) (4,737)
(13,271,226) (2,231,159) (15,575, 288) (2,618,517)
53,983,440 9,075,696 51,438,874 8,647,903
2024 23
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2023 30 2022

( ) « ) ( ) « D
38,906,748 6,541,002 40,420,405 6,795,478
(36,887,230) (6,201,481) (31,724,071) (5,333,451)
2,019,518 339,521 8,696,334 1,462,028
584,573 98,278 (118,081) (19,852)
2,604,091 437,800 8,578,253 1,442,176
(300,029) (50,441) (410,103) (68,947)
2,304,062 387,359 8,168,150 1,373,229
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2023 30

2023 30 2022 30
2,304,062 387,359 8,168,150 1,373,229
18 274,862 46,210 96,465 16,218
(34,358) (5,776) (12,058) (2,027)
240,504 40,434 84,407 14,191
2,544,566 427,792 8,252,557 1,387,420
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2023 30
2022 10 62,992,338 4,050,000 (28,176)  (15,575,288) 51,438,874
2,304,062 2,304,062
240,504 240,504
240,504 2,304,062 2,544,566
2023 30 62,992,338 4,050,000 212,328 (13,271,226) 53,983,440
2021 10 62,992,338 4,050,000 (112,583)  (23,743,438) 43,186,317
8,168,150 8,168,150
84,407 84,407
84,407 8,168,150 8,252,557
2022 30 62,992,338 4,050,000 (28,176)  (15,575,288) 51,438,874

137/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 30

102

102
102 26
2014 39 102 11
102 12

102 102
2014
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2023 30 2022 30
21,544,086 18,442,605
15,343,144 13,281,466
36,887,230 31,724,071

2023 30 2022 30
15,965,434 13,958,441

1,821,982 1,686,448
1,130,512 980,282
2,626,986 1,817,434
21,544,914 18,442,605
218 2022 215
SMTTIL
2023 30 2022 30
128,000 127,013
925,808 802,603
62,404 55,639
46,500 24,725
6,155 12,100
162,913 87,827
436,762 464,845
1,001,381 732,840
957,257 922,726
17,731 50,858
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2023 30 2022 30
40,951 51
41
259,078 410,011
300,029 410,103

2023 30 2022 30
34,358 12,058

2023 30 2022 30
2,604,091 8,578,253

2022

325,511 1,072,282
(45,957) 14,895
20,475 25
41
(677,140)
300,029 410,103
74,190 74,967
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2023 30
2022 30 14,377,174 14,377,174
1,803,995 1,803,995
2023 30 16,181,169 16,181,169
2022 30 8,597,880 8,597,880
1,001,381 1,001,381
2023 30 9,599,261 9,599,261
2023 30 6,581,908 6,581,908
2022 30
2021 30 12,710,161 12,710,161
1,667,013 1,667,013
2022 30 14,377,174 14,377,174
2021 30 7,865,040 7,865,040
732,840 732,840
2022 30 8,597,880 8,597,880
2022 30 5,779,294 5,779,294

Advent Geneva and Paladyne
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2023 30
2022 30 1,498,550 775,783 3,055,128 5,329,461
146,887 11,731 87,592 246,210
2023 30 1,645,437 787,514 3,142,720 5,575,671
2022 30 1,336,543 736,628 2,457,931 4,531,102
77,204 35,829 323,729 436,762
2023 30 1,413,747 772,457 2,781,660 4,967,864
2023 30 231,690 15,057 361,060 607,807
2022 30
2021 30 1,384,465 753,916 2,610,824 4,749,205
114,085 21,867 444,304 580,256
2022 30 1,498,550 775,783 3,055,128 5,329,461
2021 30 1,277,604 694,820 2,093,833 4,066,257
58,939 41,808 364,098 464,845
2022 30 1,336,543 736,628 2,457,931 4,531,102
2022 30 162,007 39,155 597,197 798,359
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2023 30 2022 30
5,166,913 4,980,347
3,015,665 3,357,671

86,360 116,691
352,810 242,438
3,063,540 2,780,437
- 3,221
2,514,700 2,808,136
391,665
14,591,653 14,288,941
2,576,349 2022 2,711,174
361,204
2023 2022

2023 30 2022 30

4,411,799 5,853,822
10,596,167 30,045,646
15,007,966 35,899,468
22,200,200
22,200,200
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2023 30 2022 30

3,512,942 3,470,376
40,123
45,019
139,011 322,786
82,895 247,385
821,593 821,593
409,530 420,029
5,006,094 5,327,188
340,313 PAYE 2022 433,427 216,706
PRSI 2022 240,381 64,994 2022 78,777
2023 30 2022 30
400,000
100,000,000

400,000 492,338 492,338
62,500,000 62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338

2023 30 2022 30
4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000

405
2013

147/280



13

14

15

102

16

17

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 30 2022 30
708,891 18,480 708,891 12,290
1,323,789 36,960 2,032,680
2,032,680 55,440 2,741,571 12,290
2023 30 2022 30
1,130,512 980,282
72,760 72,751
60 65
33
100 8233
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18

2023 30
2,400,000 €2,197,941 €1,598 (€45,934) (€44,336)
955,000,000 €6,564,328 €349,889 €349,889
£2,900,000 €3,275,396 €1,323 (€36,961) (€35,638)
€352,810 (€82,895) €269,915

2023 12 2024 30
466,236
2022 61,420

€352,810 €352,810
€352,810 €352,810
€82,895 €82,895
€82,895 €82,895

2022 30
2,350,000 €2,175,720 €14,060 (€199,220) (€185,160)
730,000,000 €5,360,673 €164,950 (€24,859) €140,091
£2,850,000 €3,229,408 €63,428 (€23,306) €40,122
€242,438 (€247,385) (€4,947)
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2022 12 2023 30
61,420
2021 234,683
€242,438 €242,438
€242,438 €242,438
€247,385 €247,385
€247,385 €247,385
19 2014
2014 357
357 2023 30
20

2024 23
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of financial position
as af 30 Seplember 2123

Neaie 3 September 30 September
1023 2022
€ £
Fixed assels
Intangihle assets fi 6,581,908 779,204
Tangible fixed assets 7 607.RBOT TIR35Y
7,189,715 6,577 653
Current assets
Debiors & 14,591,653 14,285 ]
Cash at bank and in hand o 15,007,966 35,890 468
Current assct investmenis ) 22,200,200 -
51,799,819 S0 188 408
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year — {f) {50006, 094) (5,327, 188)
Met current assets 46,793,725 44,861,221
Net asscis 53,983,440 51,438,874
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital I 62,992 338 62003 338
Additional paid in capital 12 4,050,000 4 050, (040
Cash flow hedpe reserve 212328 (28.176)
Profit and loss account (13.271,226) {15.575.288)
Total sharcholders” Tunds 53,983,440 51,438,874

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of finaneial position.

COm behalf of the board
e A gl by Deculagred by
Eeii Mubasaiea E{M t‘dﬂdﬁb@k
{}u":fcwwm rector 23 Janmuary Ni24
Keifi Nakamura FPerer Callaghan
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Income statement
for the vear ended 30 Seplenber 2023

Nowe
Turnover
Administrative expenses 3
Profit on ordinary activities before interest and
taxation
Interest income / (expense)
Frofit on ordinary activities before taxation 4
Taxabion on ordinary achivitics 5

Profit for the yvear

All results have been generated by contimuing opemtions

Ooooooooooooooooooad

30 September 30 September
2023 2022
€ 3
38,906,748 40 420,405
(36,887,230) (31,724.071)
2019518 #0606 334
584,573 (118,081 )
2o04,091 8,578,253
{300,029) (410,103)
2304062 = 168,150

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this income statement.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of other comprehensive income
o the vear ended 30 September 2023

Niste 30 September 30 September
2023 2022
€ L
Profit for the vear 2,304,062 B, 168,150
Other comprehensive income
Effective portion of changes in fair value of 1% 274,862 O d63
cash flow hedges
Ingome tax on other comprehensive income b (34,358) (12.058)
Other comprehensive income for the vear, 240,504 #4407
net of income tax
Total comprehensive income for the vear 2,544,566 B, 251 557

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of other comprehensive income.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of changes in equity
o the vear ended 30 September 2023

Called up Additional  Cash fow Profit and Total
share paid in hedging  loss account equity
capital Capital FESErVe
£ £ 13 € €
Balance at 1 October 2022 62,992,338 4,050,000  (28,176) (15,575,288) S1438874
Total comprehensive income for
the perind
Profit for the year - - - 234,062 2,304,062
Onher comprehensive income for the
period - - 240,504 - 240,504
Total comprehensive income for the
period - . 240,504 2304062 2,544,566
Transactions with owners, recorded
dircetly in equity
Issuance of Shares - - - - -
Total contributions by and
dismmbutions to owners - - - - -
Balance at 30 September 2023 62,992,338 4,050,000 212,328  (13.271,226) 53983440
Called up: Additional  Cash Mow Profit and Total
share pand in hedging  loss account cquity
capital Capital FESErve
€ € € € €
Balance at 1 October 2021 62,992 338 4,050,000 (112,583} (23,743.438) 43,156,317
Toal comprehensive income for the
period
Profit for the year . - - B.l68 150 B 168,150
Other comprehensive income for the
period - - 4,407 - 4. 407
Toal comprehensive income for the
period - - 54,407 8,168,150 8252557

Transachions with owners, recorded

directly in equity

Issuance of Shares - . - . -
Total contributions by and

distnbutions to owners e = z i 4

Balance at 30 September 2022 62902338 4,050,000  (28,176) (15,575 288) 51438874
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Motes
Forming part of the financiol starsmens for the vear ended 30 Seprenber 2023

1 Accounting Policies

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Company™) with a registered office at Block 5,
Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road. Dublin 2, is a private company limited by shares and
incorporated and domiciled in Ireland,

The functional and preseniation currency of these financial statemenis is Euro.

The Company’s immediate parcnt undertaking, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ircland) Limited
includes the Company in its consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements of Sumitomo Misul Trust (rcland) Limited are available o the public and may be
obtained from Block 3, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

In these financial statements, the Company is considered 1o be a qualifying entity (for the
purposes of this FRS) and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of the

following disclosures:
¢ Reconcilintion of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning o end of the
period,

¢  (Cash Flow Statement and related notes:; and
¢ Koy Management Personnel compensation.

As the consolidated financial statements of the Company's ultimate parent, Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust Holdings Inc. include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also mken the
exemptions under FRS 102 available in respect of the fallowing disclosures:
o  Certain disclosures required by FRS 102,26 Share Baved Poyments; and,
e The dizclosures required by FRS 102,11 Hasic Fimarciad fnstruments and FRS 102,12
Other Financial Insirment fosves i respeet of financial instruments not falling within
the fair value accounting rules of Schedule 3, paragraph 389 of the Companies Act 2004,

The accounting policics sct out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applicd consistently
1o all penoeds presented in these financial statements,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Farmting part of the fimanciol statenents for the year eoded 30 Seprember 2003 foantimoed)

1 Accounting Policies = (continued)
The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are as follows:
Basis of Preparation

These Mnancial statements are prepared in accordance with Finangial Repoming Standard 102
{*'FRS 102™") The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
and 1ssued by the Finaneial Reporting Couneil, and promulgated for use i Ireland by Chartered
Accountants freland. The Company is also subjeet to the requirements of the Companies Act
2004,

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except for the modification
e a fair value basis for cenain financial instruments as specified in the accounting palicies below.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, cstimates
and assumptions that affeet the application of policies and the reported amounts of asscts and
labilites, ncome and cxpense (cg wseful economic life). The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expericnee and various other factors that are believed 1o be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates ond underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions o
accounting cstimates are recogniscd in the perieds in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period. or in the penod of the revision and future penods if the revision affects
both current and future penods,

Interest income and imnterest expense

Interest imcome and income cxpense are recegnised in the income statcment onan accruals hasis
Turnover and Administration Expenses

Tumover comprises fee mcome from administration and management services, which is
accounted for on an acenuals basis: It also includes income camed from the recharge of services

o other group compamies. Turmover and administration expenses are shown exclusive of amounts
paid to other service providers. All amounts are charged at normal commercial rates.
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MNotes
Forming part of the fimancial siatements for the year ended 30 Seprenber 2023 {eontinued)

1

Accounting Policies — (continued)
Foreign Currencies

The financial statements are expressed in Euro (), which is the funciional and presentation
currency of the Company.

Monetary assets and habilines denominated in forgign currencics are translated using the
exchange rates prevaling at the balance sheet date, Transactions denominated in foreign
currencics are translated of rates which approximate the rates prevoiling ot the dates of the
transaclions,

Mon-monetary asiets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies which are measured at
fair value, are translated into curo at the date the fair value was determined.

Share capital 15 translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of its 1550,

Profits and losses ansing from currency translation and on scttlement of amounts receivable and
payable in foreign currencics are dealt with in the income statement.,

Basic Financial Instruments

Trade and ather debsors 7 ereditors

Trade and other dehtors ane recognised inially at transaction price plus attribuable mansaction
costs. Trade and other credivors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable
transaction costs, Subsequent to initial recognition they are measurcd at amortised cost using the
cifecnve interest method, less any impairment losses in the case of rade debrors.

Cash and curreni assel invesiments

Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand and are recorded at amonised cost. Callable deposits
and term deposits-are recorded at amortised cost.
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Motes
Forming part of the fimancial siatements for the year ended 30 Seprember 2023 {continned)

1 Accounting Policies — (continued)
Oither financial instruments

Financiol instrements wof considered 1o be Basic financial  fasruments (Ether financial
fnstrinemis)

Other financial instruments not meeting the defimtion of Basic Financial Instruments are
recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent 1o initial recognition other financial instruments are
measured at fair value with changes recognised in the income statement cxcept as follows:

- investments in cquity instruments that are not publicly mded and whose fair value cannot
otherwise be measured rehiably shall be measured at cost less impairment; and

- hiedging instruments in a designated hedging relationship shall be recognisced as set out below,
Derivative finaneial instraments and hedging

Denvanve financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurcment
o fair value is recogniscd immediately in the income statement.  However, where derivatives
qualify for hedge accounting, recopnition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the
item being hedged (see below).

Caxh fleow hedges

Caszh flow hedges are used o cover the Company's exposure to variability in cash flows that is
attributable 1o particular risk associated with 2 recopnised asser or lability or a firm commitment
which could affcet income or expenses, Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
Iedpe of the variability in cash flows of 8 recopnized asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast
ransaction, the cffective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is
recognised directly in Other comprehensive income (“OCT). Any ineffective partion of the hedge
is recopnised immediately in the income statement.,

Forcash flaw hedges, where the foreeast transactions resulted in the recognition of a non-finaneial
asset or non-financial liability, the hedging gain or loss recognised in OC1 is ingluded in the initial
cost or other carrying amount of the asset or liability. Altematively when the hedeed item is
recognised i the mcome sttement the hedgimg gain or foss is reclassified w the income statement.

When a hedging instrument ¢xpires or 15 sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity discontinues
designation of the hedpe relationship but the bedped forecast ransaction s sull expected 1o ocour,
the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised i accordance with the
above policy when the transaction oceurs, If the hedged transaction is no longer expecied o take
place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity 15 recognised m the income
statement immediately.
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MNotes
Forming part of the fimanciol statements for the year ended 30 Seprermber 2023 feontinied)

1 Accounting Policies — (continued)
Taxation

Tax on the income statement for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the mcome statement exceplt (o the extent that it relates to ems recogmsed directly in eguity or
other comprehensive mcome, in which case ot 5 recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the tmxable meome or loss for the year,
wsing tnx rates cnacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any
adjustiment (o tax pavable in respeet of previous years,

Deferved tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and
expenses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the
financial statements, The following timing differences are not provided for: differences between
accumilated depreciation and fax allowances for the cost of o fixed asset if and when all conditions
for retaining the tax allowances have been met, (o the extent that it 1s not probable that they will
reverse in the foresecable future and the reporting entity is able to contrel the reversal of the timing
difference. Deferred tax is not recognised on permanent differences ansing becanse certain types.
of ingome or expense arc non-taxable or are disallowable for tax or becanse cortaim tax charges or
allowanees are greater or smaller than the cormesponding income or expense,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the reloted
difference, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted ot the balance sheet date, Deferred tax
balances are not discounted.

Unrelieved tax losscs and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the cxtent that is it
probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future
taxable profis,

A deferred tax asser is recorded where it is more likely than mot to be recoverable. The
recoverability of defermed tax assets is assessed annually by the dircctors.
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MNotes
Forming part of the fimanciol statements for the year ended 30 Septermber 2023 fcantimed)

1 Accounting Policies — (continued)
Intangible asseis

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities is recogmised in the income statement as an expense as incurred,

Expenditure on developmcent activities may be capatalised 1f the product or process is technically and

commaercially feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources
to complete development, future cconomic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure
rehably the expenditure anrbutable o the intangible asset dunng s development. Development
activitics involve the desipn, construction or testing of the production of new or substantially
improved products or processes, The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct
Iabour and an appropriate proportion of overhcads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other
development expenditure is recogmised o the mcome statement as an cxpense as incurred.
Capitalised development expenditure 15 stated atl cost less accumulated amoriisation and less
accumulated impairment losses.

Intzngible fixed asscts arc stated at cost less accumulated amomsation and accumulated impairment
losses, Amaortisation is charged i equal instalmenis on the cost of assers over their expected useful
lives and 15 included within administration costs,

Useful life
Software T years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary.
Assets in the course of development are not amortised wuntil they are brought into use,

Tangible fixed assels

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation s charged in equal
instalments on the cost of assets over their expected wseful lives and s included within
admimistration costs,

Useful life
Furmiture and cquipment 5 vears
Software 3 years
Mainframe Equipment 3 years
Personal Computers 2 years
Computer Terminals 3 years
Fund admimstration system 3 years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where
mccessany,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming part of the feanchol staferments for the year ended 30 Seprember 2023 (contimed)

1 Accounting Policies — (continued)
Employee benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for employees, Obligations for
contributions to defined contnbution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the meome
statement when they are due,

Additional paid in capital

Subordimated Loans of €4.03 million previously received from the Company's parent, that ane non-
inferest bearing and repayable at the Company s discretion, were reclassified as capital during 2013,
after a review of their terms and conditions, and the receipt during 20013 of confirmation from the
Company s parent and that these amounts are repayable solely at the voliion of the Company and
that the Company's parent will not demand repayment of these amounts,

2 Ownership and operations

The Company, which is engaged in the provision of admimstration and management company
serviees o vanous funds, is o whelly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsu Trust {lreland)
Limated, a company incorporated in the Republic of Ireland. The ultimate parent company is
Sumitomo Mitsw Trust Holdings Inc. a company incorporated in Japan.

The financial saements are prepared on a going concern basis, and it is the inention of the
dircctors to continee to develop the activities of the Company in consultation with its parent.
Sumnomo Mitsun Trust Bank Limuted s dircctly supporting the business development of the
Company.

The Company hos entered into agreemcents with vanous entitics 1o which it provides services.

Under these agreements, the Company has undertaken to provide administration and management
company services for an agreed fee.
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Forming part of the financiol stafemets for the vear ended 30 Seprembar 2023 (contimied)

3

Administrative expenses

Staff costs
(ther admimistrative cxpenses

Staff cowts comprise:
Wages and salarics
Social welfare costs
Pension costs

Cither costs

30 September
2023
€

11,544,086
15,343,144

36,887,230

30 September
2023
€

15,965,434
1,821,982
1130512
2,626,986

21,544,914

30 September

2022

€

15,442 60035
13,281 466

31,7071

30 September
2022

£

13,958,441
1,686,448
GR0,282
LE17 434

18 442 6005

Ooooooooooooooooooad

The average number of persons employed by the Company (including directors) dunng the
year was 218 (September 2022 215), The Company shared the use of facilities wath SMT
Trustees (Ircland) Linated (“SMTTIL") during the period, The related costs were allocated

and recharged on an agreed basis, as set out m service level agreements,
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MNotes
Forming part of the financtal statements for the vear ended 30 Seprember 2023 feontimed)

4 Profit on ordinary activities hefore taxation

The profit on ordinary activitics before taxation has been détermined after charging the following:

30 September 30 September
2023 2022
€ €
Dhireetors ' vemuneration:
Fees 128,000 127,013
Other remunicration 935 808 02 603
Defined pension contrbiition scheme 61,404 55,630
Avdditor s renumerarion;
At 46,500 24,725
Tax advisory scrvices 6,155 12, L
Onher assurance services 162,913 87827
Other non-audit services - -
Depreciation 436,762 464 845
Amortisation of intangible asscts 1,001,381 T3LE40
Cperating lease reneals;
Land & buildings 957,257 032.726
Other assets 17,731 S0 %58
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Motes

Forming part of the financtal statements for the year ended 30 Seprember 2023 {continied)

3 Taxation on ordinary activities
30 September 30 September
2023 2022
€ £
{a) Total tax recogmised in the ineome stalement
Currend foax
Current tax on meome for the peniod 40.951 51
Umder {{over) provision in respect of prior year - 41
Dferred tavation
Unier ( (Over) provision in prior period - -
Orgination and reversal of timing differences 259078 41011
Total tax expense 300,029 410,103
3 September 30 September
2023 2022
€ €
(b} Total fax recognised in OC]
[¥efermed tax charge 34,358 12,058
() Tax reconciliation
30 September 3 September
23 2022
€ 3
Profit on ordinary activitics before txation 1.o04,091 B.578.253
Corporanon tax based on standard
rate at 12.5% (September 20220 12.5%) 325511 1,072 282
{Execess) / deficieney of depreciation over - -
capital allowances
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (45,957) L4895
Differences ansing from tax it the higher rate 20475 25
Loss relief (utilised) / carried forward . =
Prior year adjustmenis - 41
Recognition of Defermed Tax Assct - (677,140)
Total tax charpe J00,029 410,103
Income tax on health msurance premiums 74,190 T4 967
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Motes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 Seprember 2023 (cantimed)

6 Tntangible Fived Assets

As at 30 September 2023 Software Total
€ €
Cast
At 30 September 2022 14377174 14,377,174
Additions duning the yvear 1,803,995 1,803,995
[Nsposals during the vear - .
At 30 September 2023 16,181,169 16,181,169
Amorisation
At 30 September 2022 8,597,880 8,597,880
Amaortisation for the vear 1.001.381 1,001,381
Dnsposals during the year - -
At 30 September 2023 2,599,261 9,599,261
Net book value at 30 Sepltember 2023 6,581,208 6,581,908
As at M September 2022 Software Total
€ €
Cost
At 30 September 2021 12,710,161 12,710,161
Additions during the vear 1,667 013 1,667 013
Disposals during the year . -
At 30 Seprember 2022 14,377,174 14,377,174
Amoriisation
At 30 September 2021 7,865 0640 7RG, 040
Admortisation for the vear T32 840 T32 840
Disposals durimg the year - -
At 30 September 2022 E.597 880 8,507 480
MNet book value at 30 September 2022 5.779.294 5779294

The intangible asset relating to the development of Advent Geneva and Paladyme s the
core fund administration system has been fully amontised.

The additions during the current period arc related to the further development of the
core administration sysiem, with the final migration phase currently taking place,
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Forming part of fhe fisarclol statements for the vear ended 30 Seprenber 2003 deontinned)

T Tangible Fixed Aszets

As at 30 September 2023 Furniture & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment

€ £ £ £
Cost
Al 30 Seprember 2022 1,498,550 775,783 3055,128 5,329,461
Addhitions during the year 140,887 11,731 B7.592 46,210
Disposals during the year - - - -
At 30 Scptember 2023 1,645,437 THT.514 3,142,720 5,575,671
Depreciation
At 30 Seprember 2022 1,336,543 76,628 145790 4,531,102
Depreciation for the yvear 77104 A5829 323,719 436,762
Disposals duning the year - - - -
At 30 Seprember 2023 1.413,747 772457 2,781,660 4967864

MNet book value at 30

September 2023 231,690 15,057 361060 607,807
As at 30 September 2022 Furnitore & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment

L € € (3
Ciost
At 30 Seprember 2021 1,384 465 753916 2610824 4,749 205
Additions during the vear I 14,085 21867 44 304 SR0.256
Disposals during the year - - - -
At 31 September 2022 1498550 175,783 3055128 5329461
Depreciation
Al 30 Seprember 2021 1,277,604 694,820 20M3 533 4,066,257
Depreciation for the year 58,939 41,808 ELE NI 464,845
Dizsposals during the vear - - - -
At 30 Sepiember 2022 1,336,543 Ti6,628 2457 91] 4 531,102
et book value at 30
September 2022 162,007 39,155 397,197 T98 359
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Notes
Forming part of the financiol siatements for the year ended 30 Seprember 2023 feontinned)

&  Debtors: amounts falling due within ong vear

30 September 30 Seprember

2023 2022

€ €

Fee debtors 5,166,913 4 080 347

Prepavments and VAT recoverics 3,015,665 3357471

Crher debtors B6.360 116,691

Short term asset on derivatives 352,810 242438

Amount owed by related companics 3,063,540 1,780,437

Corpomtion Tax Asset - 32211

Deferred wmx 1,514,700 2 808,136
Interest Receivabile 391,665 -

14,591,653 14,288 941

The deferred tax asset recorded above includes an amount of €2,576,349 (Soptember 2022: €2.711,174)
thar relates to the recognition of unused tax losses. The net reversal of the deferred tx asset expected o
occur in the next reporting perod 15 €360, 204, doe to the on-poing profitability of the company.

The Company has no further vnrecogmsed deferred tax assets for 2023 or 2022,

The amount owed by the related companics includes a balance relating 10 services as outlined in the
management services agreement. The balance is unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand.

9 Cash at bank and in hand and curvent assel investments

30 September 30 September
023 2022
3 E
Clash ar bank and in hond

Current accounts 4,411,799 3853422
Callable deposits 10,596,167 30045 646
15,007,966 15,890 468
Crrrent gesel invesiment 22,200,200 -

Term deposits with credit instifution
12,200,200 :

Callable deposits are repayable on demand.  Deposits at eredit institutions include term deposits with
maturities of less than one vear,
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Motes
Farming port of de financho! statements for the year erded 30 Seprember 2023 fcontinned)

1 Creditors: amounts falling due within one vear
30 September 30 September

023 2022
£ &

Aceruals 3512942 347037
Corporation tax 40,123 -
Interest payable - 45019
Trade creditors 139,011 322 786
Short term labality on derivatives 81,895 247 385
Amount owed 1o parent 821,593 #2593
Amount owed 1o related companics 409,530 420,029
5,006,094 5327188

Accruals include creditors in relation to PAYE of €340,313 (2022; €433,427), PRSI of
E216,706 (2022: €240,53581) and other taxes of €64,994 (2022; €75,777),

The amount owed o the parent company 15 unsecured and interest free,

The amount owed to the related companics includes a balance refating to services as outlined
in the services agreement, The balanee is unseoured and interest free and repavable an demand,

11 Called up share capital
30 Seprember 30 September

023 2022
€ €
Awthorised
Q00,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each
106,000 (M0 ordinary shares of EUR €1 cach
Alfented, called up and fully paid
400000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each 491,338 492 33K
62,500,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each 62,500,000 612, SIH), (UK
62,992,338 £2,992,338
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MNotes
Forming part of the financtal statements for the year ended 30 Seprember 2023 {eontimed)

12 Additional paid in capital
30 September 30 September

023 2022

€ £

Additional paid in capital 4,050,000 4 050 00
4,050,000 4,050,000

In conncction with €405 million of the total amounts recerved to date by the Company under
the terms of the subordinated toan amamgements for the non-interest bearing loans, the
Directors noted the resolution made in September 2013 by Sumitomo Mitsui Truss (Ireland)
Limited (the “Parent Company™) that they would not demand repayment of the loans and that
they are repavable solely at the volition of the Company. Accordingly, as these amounts have
now been confirmed as non-repayable and do not bear interest or carry any other cconomic
obligation they were re-classificd on the statement of financial position from long-term
liabilitics to capital, in order to better refleer the capital nature of the transactions.

13 Commiimenis

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating lepses are as follows:

30 September A0 Seprember

2023 2022
Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
€ € € 3

Operating leases which expine:

Within one vear Tog.891 18,480 TOB BG 12,290
In the second 1o fifth years inclusive 1,323,789 36,9260 2032 680 .

Over five vears = = - .

L032,680 55440 2741571 12,290

Under an agrecment, the Company has undertaken o provide o procure company secretarial
and general administration and support services e SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited and
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited (London Branch) a custody company based in the UK.
In rerurm, the Companies have agreed that a fee will be paid for the services provided.

169/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Motes
Forming part of the finencial siatements for the year ended 30 Seprermber 2023 (eontimed)

14 Pension costs
30 September M Seprember

023 022

€ t

Pension charge for vear 1,130,512 QR0 282
Pension charge payable at end of vear 72,760 72,751

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its executive directors and
emplovees, During the year the retirement age was rised from 60 to 65 years of age,

15 Related parties

The Company 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomeo Mitsu Trust Heldings Inc. whose
eonsolidated Anancial statements are publicly available. The Company 15 availing of the
exemption under Section 33 of FRS 102 “Related Party Disclosures’ 1o not disclose
transactions with other group undertakings which would be eliminated on consolidation i the
fimancial statements of the group.

16 Ultimate parent company

The Company™s immediate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsu Trust (Trelandh Limited, a
company incorporated in Ireland, The Company's ultimate parent undertaking is Sumitomao
Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc., a company incorporated in Japan. The largest group in which the
financtal statements are consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc.
Copics of the financial statements of Sumitomae Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc, are available to
the public and may be obtained from §-4-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8233, Japan,

The smallest group in which the results of the Company arc consolidated is that headed by
Sumivomo Mitsud Trust (Ireland) Limited, Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo

Mitsisi Trust {Ireland) Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5,
Harcourt Cenire, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

17 Post balance sheel events

There were no post balance sheet events which require amendment o or disclosure in the
financial statements.

170/280



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming part of the fmanciol statements for the vear ended 30 Seprember 2023 {eontinied)

18 Financial instruments - Hedge accounting

The following forward fareign currency contracts were open as at 30 Sepiember 2023,

Buy Euro Unrealised Unrealised Total
Gain {Loss) Unrealised
Gain /
{Loss)
Sell US Dallar
52,400,000 €2,197941 £1,598 (E45 934) (E44,330)
Sell Japancse Yen
YOS5, 000, (0 Ef 504 328 €340 X549 s £349 889
Sell British
Pounds
£2.900, 000 €3,275. 396 €1.323 (E30.%6l) (E35,638)
EIRTEID (EX2 X95) E26U 915

These cash flow hedges will scitle quarterly over the period 1 December 2023 — 30 Seprember
2024, The fair value on the open contracts was caleulated using WM Reuters forward fx rates.
Duiring the vear & gain of €466, 236 (2022 loss of €61 4200 was reclassified to the income
statement. having previously been recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income
statement in accordance with the cash flow hedging policy. Mo collateral exists for any

derivative eontracts.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ 3 € €

Assels
Forward
CUFTENCY E3S2.HE10 EIS2E10
contracts
Total - €352.810 - €352 810
Linhilities
Forward
Currency £H2.895 €82 895
contracis
Total - €82,895 5 €82,805

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised direetly
in the statement of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page
L1}, in accordance with the Company’s cash flow hedige accounting policy.
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Notes
Forming port of the financil statements for the vear ehded 30 Seprember 2023 feontinued)

18  Financial instruments - Hedge accounting (continued)

The following forward forgign curreney contracts were open as at 30 September 2022

Buy Eura Unrealised Unrealised Toial
Gain (Loss)  Unrealised
Gain /
{Loss)
Sell US Daollar
S2 3500000 €2.175, 720 £ 14,0001 (E199.220) (E185,1640)
Sell Japanese Yen
W30, 000, D) E5 300,673 €164, 950 (E24 859) £ 140.009]
Sell British
Pounds
£2 530,000 E3 230 408 61 428 (£33 306) E40,122
E242 438 (€247 ,385) {£4,947)

These cash flow hedies will sertle quarterly over the period 1 December 2022 - 30 September
20123, The fair value on the open contracts was caleulated using WM Reuters forward fx rates.
During the year a loss of €61,420 (2021 gain of €234,683) was reclassified 1o the income
statement, having previously been recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income
statement in accordance with the cash flow hedging policy. No collateral exists for any
derivative contracts,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ € € £

Assels
Forward
CUrrency €241.438 €242,438
contracts
Total = €242 438 F €242 438
Linbilities
Forward
CUrTency €247 345 €247 385
confracts
Total = £247,385 2 £247,385

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised dircetly
in thie staterment of linancial position and the statement of other comprehensive inceme (page
L1}, in accordance with the Company’s cash flow hedge sceounting policy.
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MNotes
Forming part of the financiol statenenss far the year erded 30 Neprember 2023 feontimmed}

19 Guarantee under Irish Companies Aet, 2014

Under Section 357 (1) (hy of the Insh Companies Act, 2004 companies registered in Ireland
may be exempted from filing their individual accounts provided that ther habadities are
irrevocably guaranteed by a Parent Company, which is required 1o be o registered Company of
a Member State of the Evropean Union. The Parent Company must incorporate the results of
the subsidiaries mnto its Group accounts, The results of the Company have been consolidated
into the results of the immediate Parent Company and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited
has agreed (o imevecably guarantee the liabilities of the Company as at 30 September 2023, in
aceordance with Section 357 of the Act,

20 Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 23 January 2024,
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2024 31
2024 31 2023 30

( ) C D ( ) « D
7,388,443 1,242,145 6,581,908 1,106,550
452,461 76,068 607,807 102,185
7,840,904 1,318,213 7,189,715 1,208,735
8,615,272 1,448,400 8,268,938 1,390,174
4,096,666 688,731 3,063,540 515,042
2,307,988 388,019 2,514,700 422,771
0 0 0 0
500,415 84,130 391,665 65,847
296,958 49,925 352,810 59,314
37,576,789 6,317,410 37,208,166 6,255,437
53,394,088 8,976,614 51,799,819 8,708,586
(4,516,775) (759, 360) (3,651,953) (613,966)
(40,123) (6,745) (40,123) (6,745)
0 0 0 0
(1,220,623) (205,211) (1,231,123) (206,976)
(100,281) (16,859) (82,895) (13,936)
55,357,190 9,306,651 53,983,440 9,075,696
62,992,338 10,590,272 62,992,338 10,590,272
4,050,000 680,886 4,050,000 680,886
139,090 23,384 212,328 35,697
(13,271,226) (2,231,159) (15,575, 288) (2,618,517)
1,446,988 243,268 2,304,062 387,359
55,357,190 9,306,651 53,983,440 9,075,696
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31
2024 31 2023 30
12

20,136,046 3,385,272 38,906,748 6,541,002

589,595 99,123 584,573 98,278

20,725,641 3,484,395 39,491,321 6,639,281
(19,071,941) (3,206,375) (36,887,230) (6,201,481)

) 1,653,700 278,020 2,604,001 437,800
0 0 (40,951) (6,885)
(206,712) (34,752) (259,078) (43,556)

) 1,446,988 243,268 2,304,062 387,359
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@
( )
(Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Limited)
2024 50 ( 9,851 )
( )
1987 10
2024 2,392,913,532 ( 4,715 )
@
2024 151 7,427
2024
30 8,402 8,200
©)
( )
(SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited)
2024 2.50 ( 420 ) 12 ( 2,364 )
( ) (
) 1993
14
1995
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*)
(Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London Branch)
2023 3,420
0100-01-
146005
BR000405 1974 23
®)
2024 1,000
100
(©)
2024 30 248
Q)
UFJ
2024 405
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©))

SMBC

2024 31 1,350
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MMF
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EC 1985 12 20 85/611
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UCITS 2003 29 2003
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

Independent auditors report to the unitholders of Daiwa Gaika MMF

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Daiwa Gaika MMF's financia statements:
give atrue and fair view of the Trust’s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 December 2023 and of its results for the year
then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland (accounting standards issued
by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “ The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish law).
We have audited the financia statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, which comprise:
the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023;
the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;
the Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units for the year then ended;
the Schedule of Investments as at 31 December 2023; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the accounting policies.

Basisfor opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“1SAs (Ireland)”) and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under 1SAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financia statementsin
Ireland, which includes IAASA’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
reguirements.

Conclusionsrelating to going concern
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individualy or

collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the
date on which the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
thefinancial statementsis appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the Trust's ability to continue
as agoing concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements other than the financial
statements and our auditors report thereon. The manager is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statementsor a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

Responsibilitiesfor the financial statements and the audit
Responsihilities of the manager for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of AIFM Responsibilities, the manager is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
in accordance with the applicable framework giving atrue and fair view.

The manager is also responsible for such internal control as the manager determinesis necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the manager intends to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is ahigh level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete popul ations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing techniques.
However, it typically involves selecting alimited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will often seek to
target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable usto draw a
conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on the IAASA website at:
https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedi a’b2389013- 1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of _auditors responsibilities for_audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of thisreport

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders as a body in accordance with the European Union
(Alternative Investment Fund Managers) Regulations 2013 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume

responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin, Ireland
26 April 2024

The maintenance and integrity of the Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd. website is the responsibility of the manager ; the work carried out
by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any
changes that may have occurred to the financia statements since they were initially presented on the website.

Legidlation in the Republic of Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited
(continued)

Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (‘the Company’) for the year
ended 30 September 2023 set out on pages 10 to 32, which comprise the income statement, statement of other
comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity and related notes, including
the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note 1.The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is Irish Law and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicablein the UK and
Republic of Ireland issued in the United Kingdom by the Financial Reporting Council.

In our opinion:

the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company
as at 30 September 2023 and of its profit for the year then ended,;

the financia statements have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

the financia statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2014.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (I1SAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard
issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financia statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. The other information comprises the information included in the directors report, directors and other
information and statement of director's responsibilities. The financial statements and our auditor's report thereon
do not comprise part of the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements
or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the other
information.

Based solely on our work on the other information undertaken during the course of the audit, we report that:
we have not identified material misstatementsin the directors report;
in our opinion, the information given in the directors report is consistent with the financial statements; and
in our opinion, the directors report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
We have obtained al the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be
readily and properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors remuneration
and transactions required by Sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible
for: the preparation of the financia statementsincluding being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view; such
internal control asthey determineis necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’ s ahility to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no readlistic alternative
but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor' s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilitiesis provided on IAASA’s website at
https://iaasa.ie/publications/descripti on-of -the-auditors-responsi biliti es-for-the-audit-of -the-financi al statements/

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies
Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’ s members those matters we
arerequired to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Ahern Date: 29 January 2024
for and on behalf of

KPMG

Chartered Accountants, Satutory Audit Firm

1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC,

Dublin
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